HONEY LAKE VALLEY
RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT

PUBLIC NOTICE
Regular Meeting of the

WATER MASTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WAC)

AGENDA

Date: Thursday, March 8, 2018

Location: USDA Service Center, 170 Russell Avenue, Suite C, Susanville

Time: 5:30 PM

NOTE: THE HONEY LAKE VALLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT WAC MAY
ADVISE ACTION ON ANY OF THE AGENDA ITEMS SHOWN BELOW.

NOTE: IF YOU NEED A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMODATION,
INCLUDING AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING,
PLEASE CONTACT THE DISTRICT OFFICE AT THE TELEPHONE NUMBER AND ADDRESS

LISTED BELOW PRIOR TO THE MEETING.

L CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL
. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
. PUBLIC COMMENT

Per RCD Board Policy No. 5030.4.1, during this portion of the meeting any member of
the public is permitted to make a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a
question regarding matters related to the District. Five (5) minutes may be allotted to
each speaker and a maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
A. Approval of February 8, 2018 regular meeting minutes.

V. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

A. FYE 18 Mid-year budget review and FYE 19 RCD/WM draft budget review —
Sims.

B. Discussion of District policies — Sims.




VL. REPORTS
A. Watermaster Report — Otto

B. RCD Report — Langston

Vi. COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ COMMENTS

In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), committee members may
make brief announcements or brief reports on their own activities. They may ask
questions for clarification, make referral to staff or take action to have staff place a
matter of business on a future agenda.

Vill. ADJOURNMENT

The next regularly scheduled Honey Lake Valley RCD WAC meeting will be Thursday,
April 12, 2018 at 5:30 pm m at the USDA Service Center, 170 Russell Avenue, Suite C,

Susanwlle

| certify that on March 5, 2018 | personally posted agendas as required by Government Code
Section 54956 and any other applicable law. .

Respectfully submitted,

Umuey Wl sfhe five) Wo

Mitch Otto
Watermaster
Honey Lake Valley RCD

wac agenda 3-8-18



Date:

HONEY LAKE VALLEY
RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT

WATERMASTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WAC)
Special Meeting Minutes

Thursday, February 8, 2018

Location: USDA Service Center, 170 Russell Avenue, Suite C, Susanville

Present: Board: Daren Hagata Wayne Langston Mike Bartley

.

Ramsey Wood Todd Swickard
Staff: lan Sims Mitch Otto
Attendees: None

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

Meeting called to order by Chairman Mike Bartley at 5:30 pm. The pledge of allegiance was recited and a quorum was
noted. All board present with the exception of Board Members Brad Hanson and Andrew Bertotti.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board Member Daren Hagata made a motion to approve the agenda, Board Member Wayne Langston seconded and
the motion passed. All.

PUBLIC COMMENT

None.
ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

A. Board Member Wayne Langston made a motion to approve the August 10, 2017 regular meeting minutes, the
October 12, 2017 regular meeting minutes and the November 9, 2017 special meeting minutes, Board Member
Ramsey Wood seconded and the motion passed. All

ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

A. Annual Organizational Meeting — Election of WAC chairman and vice-chairman — Bartley.

Board Member Todd Swickard nominated Ramsey Wood as chairman, BM Hagata seconded and the motion
passed. All

BM Wayne Langston nominated Todd Swickard as vice-chairman, BM Hagata seconded and the motion
passed. All.

B. SRWSA Operations Manual and Mapping Initiative — Otto,
Mitch discussed his winter activities. The WAC Board responded with good comments on his work.
C. Reporting requirements and system improvements for 2018 — Langston.

it was decided to combine items C and D. BM Langston asked how to set and meet goals in 2018. What
exactly needs to be done? He stated that WAC members should report what is needed in their areas.

D. Procedure for recording a water user’s actual take vs. allocation — Langston.
BM Langston continued the discussion on a water user’s take vs. allocation.
E. Consider the idea of having a separate budget for each area of the system — Langston.

Several ideas were discussed. It appears the WAC may revisit this idea in the future.



Vi. REPORTS
A. Watermaster Report — Otto.
Watermaster Mitch Otto presented an update on NST and measurement devices.
B. RCD Report — Langston.

Board Member Langston updated the WAC on recent RCD happenings and spoke about the first annual
HLVRCD bbq and mixer to be held at Jesse Claypool’s barn on February i

VIl COMMITTEE MEMBERS' COMMENTS
BM Swickard had some questions on WAC member terms.

BM Mike Bartley asked if Laurel Marsters had been notified of the 3" priority water decision. If not he asked that a letter
be sent to her. Ms. Marsters was sent a letter on that subject on 8/22/17.

vill.  ADJOURNMENT
Board Member Mike Bartley made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Board Chair Ramsey Wood seconded and the

meeting was adjourned at 5:56 pm. The next regularly scheduled WAC meeting will be held Thursday, March 8, 2018
at the USDA Service Center, 170 Russell Avenue, Suite C, Susanville at 5:30 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

/ety MLWW /M/%/’ Vs

Mitch Otto
Deputy Watermaster
Honey Lake Valley RCD

wac meeting minutes 2-8-18



FY17/18 Mid-Year Actuals

Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District

Fiscal Year Period: 2017/2018

Current year 7
Current Org. Current YTD | % of Budget Previous FY Previous FY
: . Budget Actuals | Budget Actuals
BEGINNING BALANCE $ 114,164.86 | 114,164.86 | ~
REVENUE
40070 - Grants & Contracts - Temporarily Restricted $ 688,708.80 0%
Prop. 1 SNC $ 250,000.00 | $ 75,000.00 30%
Prop. 1 CA Water Board (SWRP) $ 392,500.00 | §  207,490.00 53%
DOC Capacity Building $ 46,208.80 0%
40180 - Watermaster Fees $ 182,225.00 | 67,929.39 37%
Interest Income $ - $ 47.19
Donations $ 200.00
IRS Refund $ 672.00
Total Revenue| $ 870,933.80 | $ 351,338.58 40%
Total (Balance + Revenue)| $ OB5,00866 | $ 465503.44 A47%
EXPENSES - Temporarily Restricted
66000 - Payroll $ 165,360.00 | $ 67,388.74 MN%
60420 - Payroll Taxes $ 33,072.00 | $ 26,637.57 81%
67500 - Travel $ 750000 | $ 2,804.87 37%
60240 - Office $ 1,500.00 | § 1,137.14 76%
60160 - Professional Fees - Restricted $ 53082500 | $ 20660417 38%
Prop. 1 SNC $ 235325.00| % 48,639.90 21%
Prop. 1 CA Water Board (SWRP) 3 300,00000|$ 157,964.27 53%
DOC Capacity Building 3 450000 | $ - 0%
60160 - Professional Fees - Legal/Acounting $ 31,000.00 | $ 5,351.28 17%
60145 - Auto/Liability Insurance $ 13,000.00 | $ 7,591.98 58%
60275 - Postage and Delivery $ 500.00 | $ 9.03 2%
67000 - Equipment Maintenance $ 6,500.00 | $ 161.50 2%
62000 - Bank Fees $ - $ 38.71
Equipment Purchase $ 8,000.00 | $ - 0%
Contingency Fund (5%) $ 4354669 | $ - 0%
Membership Dues $ - |38 500.00
Total cash expenses| $ 84980369 |$ 318,224.99 37%
Total in-kind expenses| $ 52,500 | $ 10,875.00 21%
Total Expenses| $ 902,303.69 | $ -~ 318,224.99 35%
Revenue over Expenses| § 8279497 | $ 147,278.45 178%




FY17/18 Mid-Year Actuals

Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District

Water Master Services Budget
Fiscal Year Period: 2017/2018

Current year %
Current Org. Current YTD of Budget Previous FY Previous FY
Budget Actuals Budget Actuals
BEGINNING BALANCE $ - 10154740 | % 101,547.40
REVENUE
40180 - Watermaster Fees $ 182,225.00 | $ 67,929.39 37%
Interest Income 3 - 18 1742 |
Total Revenue| § 182,225.00 | $ 67,946.51 37%
Total (Balance + Reveune)| $ 283,772.40 | $ 169,493.91 60%] $ o k] -
EXPENSES
66000 - Payroll $ 91,500.00 | $ 45,367 .84 50%
60420 - Payroll Taxes $ 15,405.00 | $ 17,918.37 116%
67500 - Travel $ 550000 | § 1,555.35 28%
60240 - Office $ 750.00 | $ 564.63 75%
60160 - Professional Fees $  2500000]|% 2,243.68 9%
60145 - AutolLiability Insurance $ 6,375.00 | $ 5,065.45 79%
60275 - Postage and Delivery $ 350.00 | $ - 0%
67000 - Equipment Maintenance $ 6,500.00 | $ 161.50 2%
62000 - Bank Fees $ - 13 26.25
Employee Benefits $ 15,000.00 | $ -
Equipment Purchase $ 8,000.00 | $ - 0%
Contingency Fund (5%) $ 911125 | $ - 0%
Membership Dues $ -
Total cash expenses| $ 183,491.25 | $ 72,903.07 40%] $ - $ -
Total in-kind expenses $ =
Total Expenses| § 18349125 | § 72,903.07 40%] $ - 1% -
Revenue over Expenses| $ 100281151 % 96,590.84 96%) $ ~ $ -




HONEY LAKE VAILLEY RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
SUSAN RIVER WATERMASTER

RULES AND REGULATIONS

NOVEMBER 2015

Approved at November 18, 2015 RCD Board Meeting




TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I GENERAL PROVISIONS

E K T 11 =Y OO U U TS T OO PO POV T s OO OOV OO RO UUUUPSPOPPORPSOOPPRUPR 4
L1 DEfINITIONS. ..ottt ettt et a b st 4
1.2 Rules of CONSIILCHION .......ooiii ittt et eb e 5
1.3 Consistency with JUd@MENt ... 5
1.4 Amendment Of RUIES ..o e 5
1.5  Repeal of Existing Rules and Regulations...........c.ccooviiivoin i, 6
ARTICLE IT ADMINISTRATION
2.0  Principal Office.. ..o SO OO PO U U T O U POV P PP PSPPSRSO 6
2.1 RECOTAS ...oeiiivie et oete ettt s e et e bt e ekt e e et e e it e e er e e e bbb e e 6
22 Regular MEELINES ....o.vouiioeieiiiiie ettt e een e ettt e 6
2.3 Special MEBtINgS ... ..ot e e 6
2.4 AdJOUrnmMENt ...........ooiiiiiiiii e BSOS TV O U RO VPR PRTPORIOROY 6
2.5  Public Meetings/Harings. . .......c.cccoooviiiiiriioriii i 6
2.6 Confidential SESSIONS. ......cuviiiieiritiie ittt bt e st ea et eeb et 6
W A N 3 T ST U TS O O OO U T O TR E SR U O EUU PSP PRPTOPRERRUPO T
2.8  QUONHM ... et et e e~ e e et baereae e e e s abrare s 7
2.9 Voling Procedures ... 7
2,10 Conflict O TRLETESL.........oveie ittt s 7
211 MIIULES c.o.viiieei ettt ea et e oo e ee s ebe st s ke sbe e ekt ee s e b e b e e s E e b e et e et e e e 8
212 Rules Of Order ... e e e s e 8
213 ComPENSALION. ..ottt bbb 8
2.14  Employment of Experts and AENtS. ......c.ccoiieiiiiiiiiiiiciicee s 8
2.15  Appointment of Deputy Watermaster.............cocooiiiiiiiiiiii i 8
216 Investment of Funds ..............ocorren. S PSS U U U POV PO TP UUUTPUUTOTPURPPUIOS 9
237 BOITOWINZ .....oovviiiiiieiiie et ieceee et esasess e aiee e ieeees e et 9
2I8  COMITACES ...t oo e ettt e e et ek a b et e e e e et st et s s et et e b e ettt 9
2.19  Cooperation with Other AZENCIES. ......cc.ooiiiiiiciire et 9
2.20  Annual Administrative Budget.................. SO OO PO T OO PO TP R R P PURR PP 9
221 ADNUAL REPOTT. c.oiviiiiiiiiie ettt et ettt e e s b e s 9
222 STUGIES. oottt e b es ettt et et etk ettt ettt bt et sharearens .9
2.23 Demonstrated CEQA Complance ...........cccoooveeiiiiniiinciennns FTRUTORUTTOURPTRTRURPTRPPO 9
2.24  Notice Of LILIZALION .....oo.viiiiieiiiiieir ettt 9
2.25  Defense oOf JUAGMENL ... e )
226 WITEEEI REPOTES. ....ooviiuiis et iitiieieete et ettt e e et st et bbb e tn e b e e b e e saaen s 9
2.27  INEEIVEILIONS. ...iiiiiiiiiieiie ittt e eiraseas s et seseee e e et eabt e s b e nes e e b e s sib e s abesa s e a s e assrras sreen s 9
ARTICLE Il WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
3.0 PUIPOSC....ooictiiie ettt s e 10
3.1 CTEALION. ... i ittt oottt ettt 10
3.2 MBIMDEIS ... ittt 10
3.3 Term OFf Office. . it e 10
3.8 OFTICETS oottt ettt .10
3.5 Regular MEEIES. ..ottt 10




3.6 Special MEEHNES. ..oviv vttt es e 10

3.7 Conduct OF MIEELINES. .....ooiivioeieei ittt 10
B8 P OWEIS. ..ottt e e e et 11
ARTICLE IV MONIT()RING
B0 S COPE . titiiietie ettt bR e 11
4.1  Waterflow Measuting DEVICES. ........occviriiriiiciniiiieiie et 11
42  AddIIonal DIEVICES ....ooovi ittt 11
ARTICLE V BUDGET, APPORTIONMENT AND COLLECTION
5 0 S0P ittt e 11
5.1 BUGEEL ..ot ies oottt 11
5.2 SLALEIMCIIE. .o.oveees e eeeteee s iets et es e etbees e s e e e e e e e steeee b s ek rs 12
53  Service and FILING. .......coooviooriie it 12
5.4 ODBJECHOMS ..ottt e et 12
5.5 HEAIING oottt e 12
56  Certification and ColleCiOn ........cc.oiiereriie it 12
ARTICLE VI DISPUTE PROCEDURES
6.0 PUIPOSE. ..ottt ettt ettt b e e 13
6.1 Complaint................ ST TT RO USSR OO O OO SU PO OO TOPROPTOROI 13
6.2  Copy of Dispute Procedures. ... 13
6.3 Informal Dispute ResolUBION. ..ot 13
6.4  Watermaster BOard. ... 14
6.5  Fallure t0 APPeal ..o 14
6.6  Conduct OF HEATIIES .....viivi oottt et 14

6.7 TN O EIC oo e e et men etttk s e e et e A eae e ey e e aeaeae i et eaanaeeneanaaeaneeaeaeaaeaaeies 14




ARTICLE I

GENFERAL PROVISIONS

1.0 Title. This document shall be known and may be referred to as the “Honey Lake Valley
Resource Conservation District- Susan River Watermaster Rules and Regulations” adopted
pursuant to the Order Granting Petition For Substitution Of Susan River Watermaster and
Modifying Decree Case No. 4573.

1.1  Definitions. As used in 'these Rules and Regulations, these terms, including any
grammatical variations thereof shall have the following meanings.

(@)  “Advisory Commiitee” means the Water Advisory Commitice as set forth in
ARTICLE 1L '

(t) “CEQA” means the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources
Code Sections 21000 et seq; 14 California Code of Regulations 15000 et seq.

(¢)  “Complainant” means a party to the Judgment that files a Complaint pursuant to
ARTICLE VL

(d)  “Complaint” means an objection to an action, omission, or decision of the
Watermaster filed pursuant to the provisions of ARTICLE VL

(€)  “Court” means the court exercising continuing jurisdiction under the Judgment.

¢§) “Dgcisionmaker” means a body or committee designated by the Watermaster

Board pursuant to these Rules and Regulations to consider and hear a Complaint.

(g)  “Deputy. Watermaster” means the Person designated as such by the Watermaster
Board pursuant to section 2.15

(h)  “Dispute Resolution Committee” means the three (3) person committee created
pursuant to section 6.3. ‘

() “Farm Bureau” means the Lassen County Farm Bureau, a California corporation.

() “Judgment” means the Judgment filed April 18, 1940, in Lassen County Superior
Court Decree Case No. 4573 as modified by the July 31, 2007 Order Granting Petition For
Substitution Of Susan River Watermaster And Modifying Decree Case No. 4573,

(k)  “Person” means any individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability
company, business trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture,
governmental authority, water district and other entity of whatever. nature including but not
limited to the State of California and the Department of Water Resources.




Q) “Rules and Regulations” means these Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation
District, Susan River Watermaster Rules and Regulations as authorized pursuant to the Order
Granting Petition For Substitution Of Susan River Watermaster and Modifying Decree Case No.
4573 and as they may be amended from time to time.

(m) “Service Area” means the Susan River Watermaster Service Area.

(n)  “User Area” means a user area of the Service Area. The five User Areas are the
Upper Susan River (Diversion 54 and above (i.e. Schedule 4 and Schedule 5 priority 1 and 2);
Lassen Trrigation Company, Lower Susan River (Diversion 55 and below (ie. Schedule 5
priority 3), Baxter Creek, and Willow Creek.

(0)  “Watermaster” means the Honey Lake Valley Resource Conservation District,
including the Watermaster Board, all Decisionmakers and its agents, employees, and designees.

(p)  “Watermaster Board” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Honey
Lake Valley Resource Conservation District.

1.2 Rules of Construction.

(a)  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise:
(1) The plural and singular forms include the otﬁer;
(i)  “Shall,” “will,” and “must” are each mandatory;
(i)  “may” is permissive;
(iv)  “or” is not exclusive; and
(v)  “includes” and “including” are not limiting.

(b)  The masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders and vice
versa.

(c)  Reference to any agreement, document, instrument, or report means such
agreement, document, instrument or report as amended or modified and in effect from time to

time in accordance with the terms thereof.

(d)  Except as specifically provided herein, reference to any law, statute, ordinance,
regulation or the like means such law as amended, modified, codified or reenacted, in whole or
part and in effect from time to time, including any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

13 Consistency with Judgment. These Rules and Regulations shall be construed consistent
with the Judgment. In the event of a conflict between these Rules and Regulations and the

Judgment, the Tudgment shall prevail.

14  Amendment of Rules. These Rules and Regulations may only be amended by the
Watermaster Board.




1.5 Repeal of Existine Rules and Regulations. Watermaster’s existing Rules and
Regulations, any Watermaster ordinance, resolution, policy or procedure in conflict with these
Rules and Regulations and the prior by-laws of the Water Advisory Committee shall be repealed
upon the adoption of these Watermaster Rules and Regulations.

ARTICLE I

ADMINISTRATION

2.0 Principal Office. The principal office of the Watermaster shall be the USDA Service
Center, located at 170 Russell Avenue, Suite C , Susanville, California, 96130, or at such other
location or locations as may be designated by Watermaster Resolution and filed with the Court.

21  Records. The minutes of Watermaster Board meetings shall be open to inspection and-
maintained at the principal office. Copies of minutes may be obtained upon payment of the
duplication costs thereof. Copies of other records may be obtained on the payment of
duplication costs thereof and pursuant to Watermaster policy and any applicable law.

2.2 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings shall be held at the principal office of the
Watermaster pursuant to Watermaster policy at such time(s) as may be contained in the
necessary notice(s) thereof The Watermaster Board shall ensure all regular meetings are
conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown

Act” Gov. Code, §§ 54950 et seq.)

2.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called at any time by a majority of the
Watermaster Board by delivering notice thereof at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of
‘such meeting. The Watermaster Board shall ensure all regular meetings are conducted in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

2.4 Adiournment. Any meeting may be adjourned to a time and place specified in the order
of adjournment. Less than a quorum may se adjourn from time or time. A copy of the order or
notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted forthwith on or near the door of the place

where the meeting was held.

2.5  Public Meetings/Hearings. All meetings, whether regular or special, shall be open to the
public unless they are propetly designated as a confidential session. Whenever a public hearing
shall be required therein, written notice of such public hearing containing the time, date and
place of the public hearing, together with the matter to be heard, shall be given to all parties to
the Judgment and any person who requested, in writing, notice of such meeting, at least ten (10)
days prior to the public hearing. At the public hearing, evidence shall be taken with regard to
only the matters noticed, unless a sufficient urgency shall exist to the contrary, and full findings
and decisions shall be issued and made available for public inspection. Notwithstanding this
section, the provisions of ARTICLE VI shall control when applicable.

26  Confidential Sessions. The Watermaster Board may hold confidential sessions when
authorized by and in compliance with the Brown Act. Minutes shall not be taken for confidential




sessions of the Watermaster Board, but a confidential memorandum shall be prepared to describe
attendance and votes on decisions.

27  Notices. Notices shall be given in writing to all parties to the Judgment and each such
person who has requested notice in writing, and shall specify the time and place of the meeting
and the husiness to be transacted at the meeting. Notice may be provided by either facsimile or
clectronic mail delivery if the party so consents to such delivery. Delivery of notice shall be
deemed made on the date personally given or within forty-eight (48) hours of deposit thereof in
the United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, addressed to the designee and at the address
in the last designation filed by such person. Watermaster will maintain a current list of the
names and addresses of all pariies to the Judgment.

2.8 Quorum. A majority of the Watermaster Board acting as the Watermaster shall constitute
a quorum for the transaction of the affairs or business.

70 Voting Procedures. Only action by affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the
Watermaster Board present and acting as Watermaster shall be effective. All actions may be
adopted by a voice vote, but upon demand of any member of the Board acting as the
Watermaster, the roll shall be called and the ayes and noes recorded in the minutes of the
proceedings. Every member of the Board acting as Watermaster in attendance, unless
disqualified by reason of an opinion of the Watermaster counsel that the member of the Board

has a conflict of interest, shall be required to vote.

210 Conflict of Interest. Watermaster is an interest-based governing structure in which
various interests must be represented in decision-making. It is expected and preferred that each
interest be allowed to participate in Wastermaster decisions except as provided in this Rules and
Regulations. Each member of the Watermaster Board or any Decisionmaker shall vote on
matters before the Board or any Decisionmaker unless that member has a conflict of interest
pursuant to this Rule or applicable law. No member of the Watermaster Board or any
Decisionmaker may vote, participate in meetings or hearings pertaining to, or otherwise use his
or her position to influence a Watermaster decision in which he knows or has reason to know he
has both a direct personal and financial interest.

(a)  Subject to the qualification provided for in section 2.10(b) herein, a member of
the Watermaster Board or any Decisionmaker is deemed to have a direct personal and financial
interest in a decision where it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material
effect on the Wastermaster member, members of his or her immediate family, or the
Watermaster member’s other business, property, and commercial interests.

(b)  To be classified as a direct personal and financial interest, the particular matter
must be distinguishable from matters of general interest to the public or party to the Judgment,
which the Watermaster member has been appointed to represent on the Watermaster Board or
any Decisionmaker, The member must stand to personally gain discrete and particular advantage
from the outcome of the decision beyond that generally realized by any other person or the
interests he or she represents. Moreover, Watermaster representatives are expressly intended to
act in a representative capacity for their constituents. A member of the Watermaster Board or
any Decisionmaker shall not be considered to have a discrete and particular financial advantage




unless a decision may result in their obtaining a financial benefit that is not enjoyed by any other
person. In those instances where the member of the Board or any Decisionmaker shall not be
considered to have a discrete and particular financial advantage unless a deciston may result in -
their obtaining a financial benefit that it not enjoyed by any other person. In those instances
where the Board member or Decisionmaker member does have a designated alternate and the
- Board or Decisionmaker member with the identified conflict of interest may address the Board or
Decisionmaker or parficipate in the hearing or meeting as a party to the Judgment.

{¢)  This section 2.10 does not purpori to authorize or permit any person to participate
in any meeting or hearing where doing so would violate applicable law.

2.11 Minutes. The secretary of the Watermaster Board or designee shall cause the preparation
and subscription of the minutes of each meeting and make available a copy thereof to all parties
to the judgment and each person who has filed a request for copies of all minutes or notices in
writing in accordance with applicable law. The minutes shall constitute notice of all actions
therein reported. Unless a reading of the minutes is ordered by a majority of the members of the
Board acting as the Watermaster, minutes may be approved without reading.

2.12  Rules of Order. Except as provided herein, the procedures of the conduct of any meeting
shall be governed by the latest revised edition of Roberts’ Rules of Order. Strict compliance
with such rules is not required as they are intended to be a guide for the conduct of any meeting,
Failure to strictly comply with these rules shall not affect the jurisdiction or invalidate any action
taken at a meeting that is otherwise in conformity with these Rules and Regulations and

applicable law.

2.13 Compensation. Members of the Watermaster Board or any Decisionmaker shall recetve
fifteen dellars per meeting plus mileage from Watermaster for attendance at meetings, regular or
special. Mileage shall be reimbursed subject to applicable provisions of law.

2.14 Employment of Experts and Agents. ~Watermaster may employ or retain such
administrative, engineering, geologic, accounting, legal or other specialized personnel or

consultants as it may deem appropriate and shall require appropriate bonds from all officers anid
consultants handling Watermaster funds. Watermaster may maintain records for purposes of
allocating costs as may be necessary or advisable, No member of any Decisionmaker may be
employed or compensated by Watermaster may be employed or compensated by Watermaster
for professional or other services rendered to such commiitee or to Watermaster other than

provided in section 2.13 above.

2.15  Appoiniment of Deputy Watermaster. Pursuant to Water Code section 4002 and the
Judgment, the Watermaster Board may employ or retain an employee, consultant or other person
as a Deputy Watermaster. The Deputy Watermaster may exercise any duty or authority vested in
the Watermaster as authorized by the Watermaster Board and permitted by the Judgment and
applicable law. Upon the appointment of a Deputy Watermaster, the Watermaster Board shall
file a notice of such appointment with the Court as required by the Judgment. The Deputy
Watermaster shall serve at the pleasure of the Watermaster Board.




2.16 Investment of Funds. Watermaster Board may hold and invest all Watermaster funds in
investments authorized from time to time for public agencies of the State of California, taking
into account the need to increase the earning power of such funds and to safeguard the integrity

thereof. '

217 Borrowing. Watermaster may borrow from time to time, amounts not to exceed the
annual anticipated receipts of Watermaster during such yeat.

2.18  Contracts. Watermaster may enter into contracts and agreements for the performance of
any of its powers pursuant to the Judgment.

2.19  Cooperation with Other Agencies. Watermaster may act jointly or cooperate with
agencies of the United States of America, and the State of California or any political-
subdivisions, municipalities, districts or any person to the end that the purpose of Judgment may
be fully and economically carried out.

220 Annual Administrative Budget. Watermaster shall prepare and adopt an annual
administrative budget pursuant to the procedures set forth in ARTICLE V.

221 Anmual Report. Watermaster shall prepare and lodge with the Court by January 1st of
each year an annual report of its activities for the prior fiscal year.

222 Studies. Watermaster may undertake relevant studies of hydrological conditions, both
quantitative and qualitative, and operating aspects of the implementation of the Judgment.

223 Demonstrated CEQA Compliance. Watermaster shall not approve any request made
under the Judgment or these Rules and Regulations where the proposed action also constitutes a
“project” within the meaning of CEQA unless the Watermaster finds that the person requesting
Watermaster approval has demonstrated CEQA compliance.

224 Notice of Litigation. Watermaster shall provide reasonable notice to the parties to the
Judgment of any existing litigation affecting the Watermaster or that challenges the legality,
validity, or enforceability of the Judgment, the Rules and Regulations, or any decision of the
Watermaster made pursuant to these Rules and Regulations.

2.25 Defense of Judgment. Watermaster shall reasonably defend the Judgment, these Rules
and Regulation and any decision of the Watermaster made pursuant to these Rules and
Repulations against challenges brought by any person who is not a party to the Judgment. Costs
incurred by the Watermaster in defending such actions shall be considered a Watermaster
general administrative expense. However, the State of California shall not be obligated to
reimburse the Watermaster for any legal or administrative costs incurred in such defense.

2.26 Wriitten Reports. All reports required to be provided by Watermaster under these Rules
and Regulations shall be provided in written form unless the context requires otherwise.

227 Interventions. Watermaster will receive and make recommendations regarding petitions
for intervention and accumulate them for filing with the Court from time to time.




ARTICILIE It

WATER ADVISORY COMMITTERE

3.0  Purpose. The purpose of this Article is to prescribe the terms and conditions by which
the business and affairs of the Advisory Committee shall be managed.

51 Creation. The Advisory Committee shall be a standing committee of the Watermaster
charged with assisting the Watermaster Board in enforcing the Judgment as set forth in these

Rules and Regulations.

3.2  Members. The membership of the Advisory Committee shall consist of seven (7)
members as follows:

(a)  Five (5) members to be appointed by a majority vote of the Watermaster Board
with input from the water users for their respective User Areas. Each of these members shall be
appointed from and represent a User Area;

(b)  One (1) member of the Watermaster Board appointed by a majority vote of the
Board; and

(c) One (1) member appointed by the Farm Bureau appointed by a majority vote of
the Board.

3.3  Term of Office. Members of the Advisory Committee appointed pursuant to section
3.2(a) shall serve four (4) year terms. All other members may be removed from office by their

appointing authority at any time for any or no reason.

3.4 Officers. The members of the Advisory Committee shall elect a Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson annually at their first meeting one or after January 1st of each year. No member
shall hold office of Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson for more than two (2) consecutive years.
The Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson may be removed from office and relieved of duties by a
majority vote of the membership of the Advisory Committee.

3.5  Regular Meetings. The Advisory Committee shall meet monthly during irrigation season
for the first year on the second Thursday of each month. After the first year the Chairperson
shall call a meeting as needed. The time and location of such meetings shall be determined by

the Advisory Committee.

3.6 Special Meetings. The Chairperson or a majority of the members of the Advisory
Committee may call a special meeting of the Advisory Committee as necessary to conduct

Advisory Committee business.

3.7  Conduct of Meetings. The Advisory Committee shall notice, conduct, and hold regular
and special meetings in the same manner and pursuant to the same procedures as the
Watermaster Board as set forth in ARTICLE II, except as expressly modified by this Article.




3.8  Powers. The Advisory Committee shall have the following powers:

(a)  Assist the Watermaster Board in evaluating the performance of Watermaster staff
as requested by the Board,;

(b)  Assist the Watermaster Board in preparing the annual report pursuant to section
2.21;

(c) Assist the Watermasier Board in preparing the annual budget and statement
pursuant to sections 5.1 and 5.2; and

{(d)  Assist the Watermaster Board as otherwise requested.

ARTICLE IV

MONITORING

40  Scope. Watermaster may implement and conduct monitoring programs and activities as
necessary to enforce the Judgment and these Rules and Regulations.

4.1  Waterflow Measuring Devices. Watermaster may utilize staff gauges and electronic
gauging stations previously installed by the Department of Water Resources within the Service

Area in furtherance of its monitoring activities.

4.2  Additional Devices. Watermaster may direct, install or construct additional monitoring
devices within the Service Area as necessary to administer and enforce the Judgment and these
Rules and Regulations. Pursuant to applicable law, the Watermaster may require any owner of
any reservoir in the Service Area to construct and maintain monitoring devices above and below
the reservoir. The failure of any owner of any reservoir in the Service Area to comply with this
section may result in the Watermaster opening the outlet of such reservmr pursuant to the
applicable provisions of Water Code section 4126.

ARTICLE V

BUDGET, APPORTIONMENT AND COLLECTION

5.0  Scope. This Article sets forth the Watermaster’s rules and procedures for adopting an
annual budget and apportioning the budgeted amount among the applicable water right holders

within the Service Area.

51 Budget. Before June 1st of each year, the Watermaster shall prepare and adopt a
proposed budget showing the amount of money estimated to be necessary to pay the costs of
enforcing and administering the Judgment and these Rules and Regulations. This budget shall

incfude the following;



(a) - The proposed distribution of water among the applicable water rights holders;

(b)  Expenses incurred in furtherance of iis activities under the Judgment and these
Rules and Regulations for which funds were not available;

(¢)  The cost of preparing the annual report pursuant to section 2.21.

(d) A reasonable estimate for contingencies or to establish a working capital reserve,
if necessary; and '

(¢)  Any other anticipated costs of administering and enforcing the Judgment and
these Rules and Regulations. '

52  Statement. In conjunction with the proposed annual budget, the Watermaster shall
prepare and adopt an annual statement apportioning the amount of the budget among the
applicable water rights holders. The proposed apportionment shall comply with the Judgment
and applicable law, including, but not limited to, Water Code sections 4251 to 4254,

53  Service and Filing. The proposed budget and statement shall be served by mail on the
water rights holders ‘within the Service Area and filed with the Court before June 15th of each

yeat.

54  QObjections. Any objections to the budget or apportionment must be filed with the Court
within fifteen (15) days of service by mail on the water rights holders. Failing to object within
the time set forth in this section shall waive the ability to do so. The time to object or otherwise
respond shall not be extended by the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure section 1013.

Objections to the apportionment shall be:

(a)  Limited to whether the proposed apportionment is consistent with the Judgment
and the methodology set forth in Water Code sections 4251 to 4254; and

(b)  Set for hearing before the Court in the manner provided for a noticed motion with
notice to be given to the Watermaster and to each water right holder who be affected in any

manner by the objection,

5.5 Hearing.

(a)  In the event no timely objection is lodged, the budget and statement shall be
deemed approved by the Court without further hearing.

(b)  To ensure the Watermaster is able to timely certify apportionments pursuant to
" section 5.6, any objections to the proposed budget or apportionment shall be heard and decided
by the Court by August 10th. I an objection is not heard and decided by August 10th, the
current fiscal year budget and apportionment shall be unaffected and the results of the objection,

if any, shall be reflected in the next fiscal year budget and apportionment,

56  Certification and Collection. The Watermaster Board shall, on or before August 15th of
each year, certify to the Lassen County Auditor and the Lassen County Board of Supervisors the




amount required in order to pay the apportionment for the ensuing fiscal year, to be levied on the
land used in storage or diversion, conveyance or distribution of water stored or diverted under
the right and the land on which the water is, or is entitled to be used. Levies shall be collected on
the regular property tax bills of all affected water rights holders.

ARTICLE VI

DISPUTE PROCEDURES

6.0  Purpose. This Article sets for the general Watermaster rules and procedures for
administratively adjudicating requests, disputes, and complaints arising from any action,
omission, or decision of the Watermaster, excepting those arising under ARTICLE V.

6.1  Complaint. If a water user is unable to resolve an issue with the Deputy Watermaster,
then any affected party may fileé a Complainit objecting to or otherwise disputing any action,
omission, or decision of the Deputy Watermaster regarding the implementation of water
distribution and reporting of the Judgment or such in administration of the Service Area within
thirty (30) days of the action, omission, or decision. Complainant shall provide to-the
Watermaster Board, on a form prepared by the Watermaster Board, the following information:

(a)  The disputed action, omission, or decision of Watermaster staff, agent or
designee, including, but not limited to, the Deputy Watermaster;

(b)  The grounds or basis for the Complaint, including copies of any reports, charts,
maps, and other documentation; and '

(¢)  The Complainant’s requested relief.

6.2  Copy of Dispute Procedures. Upon receipt of the Complaint, the Watermaster shall
provide the Complainant with a written notice of the Watermaster’s dispute procedures as set
forth in this Article. Such notice shall be provided to the Complainant within three (3) days of

the Complaint.

6.3  Informal Dispute Resolution. - Upon the Watermaster Board’s receipt of a Complaint, the
Deputy Water Master, the Advisory Committee representative for the Complainant’s User Area,
and the Complainant shall meet to consider the Complaint within ten (10) days from the date of
the-Complaint. If there is a conflict between the Complainant and the Advisory Committee
representative, then the Advisory Committee Chairman (or Vice-Chairman, if the Chairman is
involved in the conflict) shall assign an alternate Advisory Committee representative. The
Advisory Commiitee Representative shall provide the Complainant with at least three (3) days
prior written notice of the date, time and location of the meeting. At the conclusion of the
meeting, the parties shall attempt to come to consensus regarding the Deputy Watermaster’s
decision regarding the Complaint. In the event that there is not consensus among the parties, the
WAC representative will provide the Complainant and the Watermaster Board with a written
report regarding the outcome of the meeting within 3 days of the meeting. The report will
include a recommendation regarding whether a third party legal and/or technical opinion should




‘be obtained. If the Complainant wishes to proceed with the process, he or she shall file a written
notice of appeal with the Watermaster within seven (7) days of receipt of the written report.

6.4  Watermaster Board. On receipt of a notice of appeal regarding a Complaint, the
Watermaster Board shall schedule a public hearing regarding the matter. The public hearing
shalt be conducted during a regular meeting or a special meeting called for that purpose. In no
cvent shall the Watermaster Board commence the public hearing regarding the appeal more than
ninety (90) days from the date of the notice of appeal. The Watermaster shall provide the
Complainant with at least ten (10) days prior written notice via registered mail of the date, time,
and location of the hearing. The Watermaster Board may continue the public hearing from time
to time, including, but not limited to, continuing the hearing for a reasonable time to obtain a
legal or technical opinion. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Watermaster Board shall
consider and decide the Complaint. The decision of the Watermaster Board shall be considered
the Watermaster’s final decision regarding the Complaint. The Complainant, may appeal this
decision to the Court within thirty (30) days of the Watermaster Board’s decision.

6.5  Failure to Appeal. Any Complaiﬁant that fails to appeal any decision of the Watermaster
within the applicable deadlines as set forth in this Article shall be deemed to have waived its

right to do so.

6.6  Conduct of Hearings. Any public hearing regarding a Complaint shall be conducted
pursuant to the following procedures:

(2)  Watermaster staff shall first present evidence of the basis for the Watermaster’s
decision. Upon the conclusion of the Watermaster staff’s presentation, the Complainant shall
then have the opportunity to present evidence supporting the modification or reversal of the

Watermaster’s decision. :

(b)  The Complainant or Watermaster staff may present witnesses, documents, and
exhibits. The Watermaster Board or Decisionmaker shall not be bound by formal rules of
evidence and will control the hearing, reserving the power to exclude testimony or exhibits

deemed irrelevant.

(©) The Watermaster Board or Decisionmaker shall ensure that an adequate and.
appropriate record of the hearing is kept. Any party, at that pariy’s sole expense, may have a
court reporter present at the hearing.

_ {(d) At the conclusion of the hearing, the Watermaster Board or Decisionmaker may
uphold, modify, or reverse the Watermaster’s decision.

6.7  Notice. Any notice provided to a Complainant pursuant to this Article shall be provided
in accordance with section 2.7.

tules and regs —~NOVEMBER 2015 — approved at November 18, 2015 meeting — Reso 2015-06 & Reso 2016-01 3-16-16




